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UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY
 
REGION III
 

1650 Arch Street
 
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19103-2029
 

CERTIFIED MAIL 
RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED 

Mr. Michael Costello 
Mr. Ronald Carter 
d/bla Carter and Costello Tree Professionals 
3724 West Neck Road 
Virginia Beach, VA 23456-3821 

Re:	 Notice of Proposed Assessment of a Civil Penalty 
EPA Docket No. CWA-03-2006-0104 

Dear Messrs. Costello and Carter: 

Enclosed please find an Administrative Complaint and Notice of Opportunity to Request 
a Hearing ("Complaint") filed against Carter and Costello Tree Professionals ("Carter and 
Costello" or "Respondents") under the authority of Section 309(g) of the Clean Water Act 
("Act"). 33 U.S.C. Section 1319(g). The Complaint alleges that Carter and Costello have 
violated Section 308 of the Act. The violations alleged by EPA are specifically set out in Section 
II of the Complaint. 

Unless you elect to resolve the proceeding by paying the penalty proposed in the 
Complaint, an Answer must be filed within thirty (30) days of receipt of the Complaint in 
accordance with the Consolidated Rules ofPractice Governing the Administrative Assessment of 
Civil Penalties, Issuance ofCompliance or Corrective Action Orders, and the Revocation. 
Termination or Suspension ofPermits ("Consolidated Rules"), 40 C.F.R. § 22, a copy of which 
is enclosed. The Answer must respond specifically to each of the allegations in the Complaint. 
Failure to respond to this Complaint and Notice with specific answers within the thirty (30) days 
will constitute an admission of the allegations made. Failure to Answer may result in the entry of 
a Default Order imposing the proposed penalties without further proceedings. 

You have the right to request a hearing to contes! any matter set forth in the Complaint. 
Such request must be included with your Answer to this Complaint. Whether or not you request 
a hearing, you may request an infonnal settlement conference to discuss resolution of this case. 
A request for a settlement conference may be included in your Answer or you may contact the 
attorney assigned to this case: 

Pamela J. Lazos
 
Sr. Asst. Regional Counsel (3RC20)
 
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region ill 
1650 Arch Street 
Philadelphia, PA191 03-2029 
215/814-2658 

Customer Service Hotline: 1-800-438-2474 



Please note that requesting a settlement conference does not affect in any way the obligation to 
file an answer within thirty (30) days. 

In addition, your company may be required to disclose to the Securities and Exchange 
Commission ("SEC") the existence of certain administrative or judicial proceedings taken 
against your company under Federal, State or local environmental laws. Please see the attached 
"Notice of Securities and Exchange Commission Registrants' Duty to Disclose Environmental 
Legal Proceedings" for more information about this requirement and to aid you in determining 
whether your company is subject to it. 

To the extent that Carter and Costello may be a "small business" under the Small 
Business Regulatory Enforcement and Fairness Act (SBREFA), please see the information sheet 
included in this package. That sheet provides information on contacting the SBREFA 
Ombudsman to comment on federal enforcement and compliance activities and also provides 
information on compliance assistance. As noted in the enclosure, any decision to participate in 
such program or to seek compliance assistance does not relieve you of your obligation to respond 
in a timely manner to an EPA request or the enforcement action, create any new rights or 
defenses under law and will not affect EPA's decision to pursue this enforcement action. To 
preserve your legal rights, you must comply with all rules governing the administrative 
enforcement process. The Ombudsman and fairness boards do not participate in the resolution of 
EPA's enforcement action. 

SincerelY,. cL 
.~la/

knOhn R. Pomp 0, Director 
"0 

( OEnvironmental Assessment and Innovation Division 

Enclosure 

cc:	 Michael Dowd, VADEQ, Central Office 
Catherine Harold, V ADEQ, WPP 
Robert J. Hume, US Army Corps of Engineers 



BEFORE THE UNITED STATES
 
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY
 

REGION III
 
1650 Arch Street
 

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19103
 

In The Matter of 

Mr. Michael Costello 
Mr. Ronald Carter 
d/b/a Carter and Costello Tree 
Professionals 
3724 West Neck Road 
Virginia Beach, VA 23456-3821 

Respondents 

)
)
)
) 
)
)
)
)
)
)
) 

Pursuant to Section 309(g) 
of the Clean Water Act, 
33 US.C § 1319(g) 

EPA Docket No. CWA-03-2006-01 04 

ADMINISTRATIVE COMPLAINT
 
and NOTICE OF OPPORTUNITY 
TO REQUEST HEARING 

--------~---.) 

I. STATUTORY AUTHORITY 

I.	 This Administrative Complaint is issued under the authority vested in the Administrator 
of the US. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) by Section 309(g)(2)(A) of the 
Clean Water Act ("Act"), 33 US.C § 1319(g)(2)(A). The Administrator has delegated 
this authority to the Regional Administrator of EPA, Region III, who in tum has 
delegated it to the Director of the Environmental Assessment and Innovation Division 
("Complainant") pursuant to Delegation No. 2-13 (8/26/02). 

2.	 Pursuant to Section 309 of the Act, 33 US.C. § 1319, and in accordance with the 
enclosed Consolidated Rules ofPractice Governing the Administrative Assessment of 
Civil Penalties, Issuance ofCompliance or Corrective Action Orders, and the 
Revocation, Termination or Suspension ofPermits ("Consolidated Rules"), 40 CF.R. 
Part 22, Complainant hereby requests that the Regional Administrator or his delegatee 
assess a civil penalty often thousand dollars ($10,000.00) against Carter and Costello 
Tree Professionals ("Respondents" or "Carter and Costello") for violations of the Clean 
Water Act. Pursuant to 40 CF.R. § 22.14(a)(6), Respondents are hereby notified that the 
procedures set forth at 40 C.F.R. Subpart 1(40 CF.R. § 22.50-.52) apply to this 
proceeding. 

II. ALLEGATIONS 

3.	 Section 308(a) of the Clean Water Act, 33 US.C. § 1318(a), authorizes EPA to, among 
other things, require owners and/or operators of point sources to make such reports and 
provide such infoIDlation as the Administrator (or his appropriate delegatee) shall 



Administrative Complaint 
EPA Docket No. CWA-03-2006-0104 

reasonably require in order to carry out the requirements of the Clean Water Act, 
including determining whether such person is in violation of the Act. 

4.	 Respondents are "persons" within the meaning of Section 502(5) of the Act, 33 U.S.C. 
§ 1362(5). 

5.	 Property identified as 1315-1317 Mill Landing Road, Virginia Beach, Virginia, GPrN# 
23197926290000 (the "Site") contains wetlands which constitute "waters of the United 
States" within the meaning of Section 502(7) of the Act, 33 U.S.c. § 1362(7); 40 C.F.R. 
§ 232.2, and 40 C.F.R. § 122.2. 

6.	 Upon infornlation and belief, Respondents used equipment to discharge fill material into 
wetlands on the Site. 

7.	 The equipment referenced in paragraph 6, above, which discharged fill material to 
"waters of the United States" constitutes a "point source" within the meaning of Section 
502(14) of the Act, 33 U.S.c. § 1362(14). 

8.	 Respondents are owners and/or operators of a point source. 

9.	 On August 5, 2005, Complainant sent a Section 308 Demand for Information to 
Respondents requesting information about work performed at the Site ("August 5 
Demand for Information"). The August 5 Demand for Information required that 
Respondents reply to the questions therein within fourteen (14) days of the date of the 
letter. The August 5 Demand for Information is attached hereto as Exhibit "A". 

10.	 Service of the August 5 Demand for Infornlation on Respondents was not completed 
because Respondents did not accept delivery and the letter was returned by the post office 
as unclaimed. A copy of the unclaimed receipt is attached hereto as Exhibit "8." 

II.	 On August 22, 2005, Complainant resent the August 5 Demand for Information via 
Federal Express. A copy of the FedEx airbill is attached hereto as Exhibit "C". 

12.	 On August 23, 2005, FedEx left the package at the front door. A copy of the tracking 
results are attached hereto as Exhibit "D". 

13.	 As no response was received, on September 13, 2005, Ms. Carol Petrow, US EPA Region 
III, spoke with Respondent Costello who advised Ms. Petrow that their offices had 
relocated. By cover letter dated September 12, 2005, Ms. Petrow resent a copy of the 
August 5 Demand for Information via certified mail. The September 12 Letter gave 
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Respondents ten (10) days within which to reply to the original August 5 Demand for 
Infonnation. A copy of the September 12 Letter is attached hereto as Exhibit "E". 

14.	 Respondent Costello signed the green card for the September 12 Letter, thereby 
completing service of the August 5 Demand for Information Letter. A copy of the signed 
green card is attached hereto as Exhibit "F". 

15.	 On September 30, 2005 and November 4, 2005, Ms. Carol Petrow, a Biologist for EPA 
Region III and the person assigned to investigate the underlying violations at the Site 
identi tied in Paragraph 5 left messages on the answering machine for Respondents 
requesting a response to EPA's original August 5 Demand for Infonnation. 

16.	 On December 12, 2005 (December 12 Letter), Complainant sent a letter advising 
Respondents that Respondents' failure to respond immediately to the August 5 Demand 
for Information may result in an enforcement action against Respondents. A copy of the 
December 12 Letter is attached hereto as Exhibit "G". 

17.	 The package mailed on December 12, 2005 containing the December 12 Letter was 
returned unclaimed. Ms. Petrow left a message on Respondents' answering machine 
regarding the need for an immediate response to the August 5 Demand for Information 
and asking Respondents to contact her regarding the outstanding request. To date, no 
response has been received. 

18.	 Respondents' continued failure to respond to these demands for infonnation is a violation 
of Section 308 of the Clean Water Act. 

19.	 Under Section 309(g)(2)(A) of the Act, 33 U.S.C. § 1319(g)(2)(A), and the Federal Civil 
Penalties Inflation Adjustment Act of 1990, as amended by the Debt Collection 
Improvement Act of 1996, and the subsequent Civil Monetary Penalty Inflation 
Adjustment Rule, 40 C.F.R. § 19, violations of the Act, such as these, which occurred 
subsequent to January 30, 1997 subject the violator to civil penalties in an amount not to 
exceed $11,000 per violation, up to a maximum of $32,500. 

20.	 EPA has consulted with the Commonwealth of Virginia regarding this action as required 
by Section 309(g)(1) of the Act, 33 U.S.C. § 1319(g)(1), by mailing a copy of this 
document to the appropriate State official and offering an opportunity for the State to 
consult further with EPA on the proposed penalty assessment. 

3 
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III. PROPOSED CIVIL PENALTY 

21.	 Based upon the foregoing allegations, and pursuant to the authority of Section 
309(g)(2)(A) of the Act, 33 U.S.C. § 13 I9(g)(2)(A), Complainant hereby proposes to 
issue a Final Order Assessing Administrative Penalties to the Respondents in the amount 
often thousand dollars ($10,000). This does not constitute a "demand" as that term is 
defined in the Equal Access to Justice Act, 28 U.S.C. § 2412. 

22.	 The proposed penalty was determined after taking into account the nature, circumstances, 
extent and gravity of the violation, Respondents' prior compliance history, Respondents' 
ability to pay, the degree of culpability for the cited violations, and any economic benefit 
or savings to Respondents because of the violations, all factors identified at Section 
309(g)(3) of the Clean Water Act, 33 U.S.c. § 13l9(g)(3). In addition, to the extent that 
facts or circumstances unknown to Complainant at the time of issuance of this Complaint 
become known after issuance of this Complaint, such facts or circumstances may also be 
considered as a basis for adjusting the proposed administrative penalty. 

23.	 The Regional Administrator may issue the Final Order Assessing Administrative 
Penalties after thirty (30) days and without further proceedings following Respondents' 
receipt of this Complaint, unless Respondents, within that time, either pay the penalty or 
respond to the allegations in the Complaint and requests a hearing according to the terms 
of Section IV, below. 

IV. QUICK RESOLUTION 

24.	 In accordance with 40 C.F.R. § 22.l8(a) and 22.45, Respondents may resolve this 
proceeding ten (l0) days after the close of the public comment period by paying the 
specific penalty proposed in this Complaint. If Respondents pay the specific penalty 
proposed in this Complaint within thirty (30) days ofreceiving this Complaint, then, 
pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 22.l8(a)(l), no Answer need be filed. 

25.	 If Respondents wish to resolve this proceeding by paying the penalty proposed in this 
Complaint instead of filing an Answer, but needs additional time to pay the penalty, 
pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 22.l8(a)(2), Respondents may file a written statement with the 
Regional Hearing Clerk within thirty (30) days after receiving this Complaint stating that 
Respondents agree to pay the proposed penalty in accordance with 40 C.F.R. § 
22.18(a)(l). Such written statement need not contain any response to, or admission of, 
the allegations in the Complaint. Such statement shall be filed with the 
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Regional Hearing Clerk (3RCOO) 
U.s. EPA, Region III 
1650 Arch Street, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19103-2029 

and a copy shall be provided to 

Pamela Lazos (3RC20)
 
Sr. Asst. Regional Counsel
 
U.S. EPA, Region III
 
1650 Arch Street, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19103-2029.
 

Within sixty (60) days of receiving the Complaint, Respondents shall pay the full amount 
of the proposed penalty. Failure to make such payment within sixty (60) days of receipt 
of the Complaint may subject the Respondents to default pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 22.17. 

26.	 Upon receipt of payment in full, in accordance with 40 C.F.R. § 22.18(a)(3), and after the 
completion of the public comment period described at 40 C.F.R. 22.45, the Regional 
Judicial Officer or Regional Administrator shall issue a final order. Payment by 
Respondents shall constitute a waiver of Respondents' rights to contest the allegations 
and to appeal the final order. 

27.	 Payment of the penalty shall be made by sending a certified or cashier's check made 
payable to the Treasurer of the United States of America, in care of: 

EPA Region III 
Regional Hearing Clerk 
P. O. Box 371099M 
Pittsburgh, PA 15251 

Copies of the check shall be mailed at the same time payment is made to: 

Regional Hearing Clerk (3RCOO) 
U.S. EPA, Region III 
1650 Arch Street 
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19103-2029 

and to: 
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Pamela Lazos (3RC20)
 
Sr. Asst. Regional Counsel
 
U.S. EPA, Region III 
1650 Arch Street 
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19103-2029. 

V. OPPORTUNITY TO REOUEST HEARING 

28.	 Pursuant to Section 309(g)(2)(A) of the Act, 33 U.S.C. § 1319(g)(2)(A), Respondents 
may request a hearing on the proposed civil penalty within thirty (30) days of receiving 
this Complaint. 

29.	 At the hearing, Respondents may contest any material fact contained in the Allegations 
listed in Section II, above, and the appropriateness of the penalty amount in Section Ill, 
above. 

30.	 The procedures for hearings are set out in the Consolidated Rilles 40 C.F.R. Part 22, a 
copy of which is enclosed. Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 22.14(a)(6), Respondents are hereby 
notified that the procedures set forth at 40 C.F.R. Supbart I (40 C.F.R. § 22.50-.52) apply 
to this proceeding. 

31.	 Any Request for Hearing and Answer to this Complaint Respondents wish to file must be 
filed within thirty (30) days ofreceiving this Complaint with the following: 

Regional Hearing Clerk (3RCOO) 
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region III
 
1650 Arch Street
 
Philadelphia, PA 19103-2029
 

32.	 Copies ofthe Request for Hearing and the Answer along with other documents filed in 
this action should also be sent to the following: 

Pamela Lazos
 
Sr. Asst. Regional Counsel (3RC20)
 
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region III
 
1650 Arch Street
 
Philadelphia, PA 19103-2029
 

Failure to file an Answer may result in entry of a default judgment against Respondents. 
Upon issuance of a default judgment, the civil penalty proposed herein shall become due 
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and payable. Respondents' failure to fully pay the entire penalty, assessed by the Default 
Order, by its due date may result in a civil action to collect the assessed penalty, plus 
interest, attorney's fees, costs, and an additional quarterly nonpayment penalty pursuant to 
Section 309(g)(9) of the Act, 33 U.S.C. § 1319(g)(9). 

In addition, the default penalty is subject to the provisions relating to imposition of 
interest, penalty and handling charges set forth in the Federal Claims Collection Act at the 
rate established by the Secretary of the Treasury pursuant to 31 U.S.c. § 3717. 

33.	 Any Answer must clearly and directly admit, deny, or explain each of the factual 
allegations contained in the Complaint with respect to which the Respondents have any 
knowledge, or clearly state the Respondents have no knowledge as to particular factual 
allegations in the Complaint. The Answer shall also state the following: 

a.	 the specific factual and legal circumstances or arguments which are alleged to 
constitute any grounds of defense; 

b.	 the facts which Respondents dispute; 

c.	 Respondents' basis for opposing the proposed relief; and 

d.	 whether a hearing is requested. 

Failure to admit, deny or explain any of the factual allegations in the Complaint 
constitutes admission of the undenied allegations. 

34.	 If Respondents request a hearing on this proposed penalty assessment, members of the 
public, to whom EPA is obligated to give notice of this proposed action, will have a right 
under Section 309(g)(4) of the Act, 33 U.S.c. § 1319(g)(4), to be heard and to present 
evidence on the appropriateness of the penalty assessment. If Respondents do not request 
a hearing, EPA will issue a Final Order Assessing Administrative Penalties, and only 
members of the public who submit timely comments on this proposal will have an 
additional thirty (30) days to petition EPA to set aside the Final Order Assessing 
Administrative Penalties and to hold a hearing thereon. 33 U.S.c. § 1319(g)(4)(C). EPA 
will grant the petition and will hold a hearing if the petitioner's evidence is material and 
was not considered by EPA in the issuance of the Final Order Assessing Administrative 
Penalties. 

35.	 Neither assessment nor payment of an administrative civil penalty pursuant to Section 
309 of the Act, 33 U.S.c. § 1319, shall affect Respondents' continuing obligation to 
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comply with the Clean Water Act, any other Federal or State laws, and with any separate 
Compliance Order issued under Section 309(a) of the Act, 33 U.S.C. § 13l9(a), for the 
violations alleged herein. 

36.	 The following Agency offices, and the staffs thereof, are designated as the trial staff to 
represent the Agency as a party in this case: the Region III Office of Regional Counsel, the 
Region III Environmental Assessment and Innovation Division, the Office of the EPA 
Assistant Administrator for the Office of Water, and the EPA Assistant Administrator for 
Enforcement and Compliance Assurance. From the date of this Complaint until the final 
agency decision in this case, neither the Administrator, members of the Environmental 
Appeals Board, Presiding Officer, Regional Administrator, nor the Regional Judicial 
Officer, may have an ex parte communication with the trial staff on the merits of any issue 
involved in this proceeding. Please be advised that 40 C.F.R. § 22.8, prohibits any unilat
eral discussion or ex parte communication of the merits of a case with the Administrator, 
members of the Environmental Appeals Board, Presiding Officer, Regional Administrator, 
or the Regional Judicial Officer after issuance of a Complaint. 

Date:_....::S=-,-),I-l/(-f)-"'0-ry"--__ 
_lrl'" John R. Pomponio, Director 

Environmental Assessment and Innovation Division 
U.S. Environmental Protection 

cia 
Agency, Region III 
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UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY
 
REGION III
 

1650 Arch Street
 
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19103-2029
 

CERTIFIED MAll 
RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED 

Mr. Michacl Costcllo 
Mr. Ronald Cartcr 
Cartcr & Costcllo Trce Profcssionals 
3829 North landing Road 
Virginia Bcach, VA 23456 

Rc: Dcmand for Infollllation rcgarding Sitc off of Mill landing Road 

Dcar Mcssrs. Cartcr and Costcllo: 

This letter and the cncloscd Demand For Information fOl1nally requcst information that 
will assist thc Unitcd Statcs Environmcntal Protcction Agcncy Rcgion III (EPA) in dctcrmining 
whcther dischargcs of pollutants associatcd with activitics at a Site off of Mill landing Road in 
Virginia Beach, Virginia, arc in compliance with the Federal Clean Water Act ("Act" or "CWA"), 
33 US.c. § 1251, et seq. 

Section 308 of the CWA, 33 U.s.c. § 1318, authorizes EPA to obtain infollnation 
necessary to carry out the purposes of the CWA. The requirement to submit infoffilation upon 
request pursuant to Section 308 of the CWA is mandatory. Compliance with this requirement 
docs not relieve you or your contractors or subcontractors of the duty to comply with any of the 
existing requirements under the CWA, nor docs it operate to resolve any liability for violations of 
the CWA. Failure to provide the requested infoffilation is a violation of the CWA and may 
subject the violator to civil or criminal sanctions, including but not limited to, a civil penalty of 
up $32,500 for each day of violation. Each day beyond the required deadline that you fail to 
provide a complete response to the request for infollnation will constitute a separate violation. 
Please be further advised that the submission of false, fictitious or fraudulent statements or 
representations may subject you to criminal penalties under 18 U.S.c. §I 001. The infoffilation 
you provide may be used by EPA in administrative, civil or criminal proceedings. 

Accordingly, pursuant to Section 308 of the CWA, you are directed to provide EPA with 
the infollllation requested in the enclosure in accordance with the attached instructions within 
fourtecn (14) days of receiving this Rcquest for Information. The answers to this infoffilation 
request should be provided to: 

Jeffrey D. lapp (3EA30)
 
Wetlands ,ll1d Oceans Program Manager
 
United States Environmental Protection Agcncy
 

Cuslomer Service Hollille: j·8()()·438·2474 



Region rn
 
1650 Arch Strcct
 
Philadelphia, PA 19103-2029
 

Although the infonnation requested must be submitted to EPA, you are entitled to assert a 
business confidentiality claim covering all or part of the infomlation requested herein in the 
manner dcscribed in 40 C.F.R. § 2.203(b). Infonnation covered by such a claim will bc disclosed 
by EPA only to thc extent and by means of the procedures set forth in 40 C.F.R. Part 2, Subpart 
B. If no claim of confidentiality accompanies the infomlation requestcd hcrein whcn it is 
received by EPA, it may be made available to the public by EPA without furthcr notice to you. 

Thank you lor your coopcration. Should you have any questions pertaining to this matter, 
pleasc contact Ms. Carol Pctrow at (215) 814-2789. 

Sincerely, 

Q)I.!, t'iiI ( ! ,__ 
J~ R. Pomp nio/Director 
Environmental Assessment and Innovation Division 

cc:	 Mr. Randy Stcffcy - US Anny Corps of Enginecrs, Norfolk District 
Mr. John Brandt - Virginia Department of Environmental Quality 
Mr. Bert Parolari - Virginia Department of Environmental Quality 

e"Slolller Sen';ce HOIIi"e. [-800-438-2474 



INFORMATION REQUEST 

This infomlation is requested pursuant to Section 308 of the Clean Water Act, 33 U.S.c. 
§ 13 I8. The Instructions and Dellnitions for responding to this Infonnation Request are as 
follows: 

A. Instructions & Definitions 

I.	 A separate narrative response must be made for each question set forth below, and for 
eaeh subpart of each question. . 

2.	 Precede each answer with the corresponding number of the question and subpart to which 
it responds. 

3.	 Provide all documents in your possession which relate to the responses given. With 
respect to each document, identify the date, author, addressee, current location, and 
custodian and identify the question or subpart to which it relates. 

4.	 The term "document" refers to "writings", "recordings" and "photographs" as those tenns 
are defined in Rule 1001 of the Federal Rules of Evidence. Documents should be 
produced as they arc kept in the usual course of business. 

5.	 Ifany question cannot be answered in full, answer to the extent possible along with an 
explanation of why the question cannot be answered in full. If your responses are 
qualified in any manner, please explain. 

6.	 If infonnation or documents not known or not available to you as of the date of 
submission of your response to this request should later become known or available to 
you, you must supplement your response to EPA. Moreover, should you find at any time 
ailer the submission of your response that any portion of the submitted infonnation is 
false or misrepresents the truth, you must notify EPA of this fact as soon as possible and 
provide a corrected response. 

7.	 The tenns "you" and "your" refers to Messrs. Michael Costello and Ronald Carter and/or 
Carter & Costello Tree Professionals. 

8.	 The tenn "Site" refers to the propcrty (GPIN#: 23197926290000) owned by Mr. Cody 
Bedford and/or Bedford Tree & Wcll Drilling Service and/or Bedford Services/A-I Tree 
Services located off of Mill Landing Road in Virginia Beach, Virginia. 



9.	 Thc tcml "work" refers to land disturbing activity, including but not limited to 
construction, clearing, grading, filling, or excavating. 

10.	 Thc following certification must accompany each submission pursuant to this request and 
must bc signcd by Mcssrs. Michael Costello and Ronald Carter or a person authorized to 
respond on behalf of Messrs. Michael Costello and Ronald Carter and/or Cartcr & 
Costello Trcc Professionals: 

"I ccrtify that the information contained in or accompanying this submission is 
truc, accuratc, and complete. As to the identified portion(s) of this submission for 
which I cannot pcrsonally vcrify its truth and accuracy, I certify as the company 
official having supervisory responsibility for the pcrson(s) who, acting under my 
direct instructions, made the verification, that this information is true, accuratc, 
and complcte. I am aware that there are significant penal tics for submitting false 
information, including the possibility of fines and imprisonment." 

II.	 All information shall bc submitted within fourtecn (14) days of receipt of this Requcst for 
Information to: 

Jeffrcy D. Lapp (3EA30)
 
Wetlands & Occans Program Manager
 
United States Environmental Protection Agency
 
Rcgion III
 
1650 Arch Street
 
Philadelphia, PA 19103-2029
 

B. Request for Information 

Messrs. Michael Costcllo and Ronald Carter and/or Carter & Costcllo Trcc Professionals 
is hereby requircd, pursuant to Scction 308 of the Clcan Water Act, 33 U.S.c. § 1318, to submit 
the following information pursuant to thc Instructions set forth above: 

I.	 State thc namc, addrcss, telcphonc number, and occupation of each person providing 
responses, or contributing information to the responses, to these demands for infommtion. 

2.	 Idcntify any businesses in which you have a share/interest. Submit a list of all partners, 
offiecrs, directors, managcrs, and/or agents of said business. If a corporation, pleasc give 
the corporation(s) datc and state of incorporation, the name and address of its agent for 
servicc of process, its address and thc nature of its business. 

3.	 Havc you or anyone acting on your behalfperformcd work at the Site or entered into any 



contract or agreement to perform work at the Site? If so, identify the entities who are 
party to such contract(s); provide the name(s), address(es) and telephone numbers of the 
individual(s) or contractor(s) responsible for conducting the work. Provide details of any 
and all agreements, or parts thereof reduced to writing; describe any oral agreements 
relating to your response(s) to the first sentence of this paragraph. 

4.	 State cach instancc when work was performed at the Site. State the start date, frcquency 
and duration of such work. Provide an accurate account of the total amount of material 
transported to and disposed of at the Site. Idcntify when and where the material was 
disposed of onsitc. State the reason any such work was undertaken. State who ordered, 
directed, supcrvised, and funded, and/or accomplished the work, or any part thereof. 
Provide the name(s), address(es) and telephone numbers of the individual(s) or entity (or 
entities) where the fill material originated. Provide documentation of all compensation 
paid for fill material brought to the Site. 

5.	 Provide copies of all documents related to any and all work performed at the Site. Such 
documents should include but not be limited to plans, drawings, specifications, permits, 
agreements, contracts, receipts, invoices, checks, and other documents which relate to 
work at the Site or billing or compensation for work at the Site. State the amount of 
compensation paid for each instance of work performed at the Site. Provide 
documentation of all compensation paid for work performed at the Site. 

6.	 State the name(s), address(es) and telephone number(s) of all persons, including paid 
consultants, with whom you discussed work at the Site. 

7.	 Did you or anyone acting on your behalf have any communications, either verbally or in 
writing, with any representatives of the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (Corps) or the 
Virginia Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ) with regard to work at the Site or 
compliance with the Clean Water Act" lfso, state the name and telephonc numbcr ofthc 
pcrson(s) with whom you communicated or with whom communications were made on 
your behalf. Provide copies of any and all written communications between you and 
anyone acting on your behalf and any representatives of the Corps or DEQ, including all 
notcs, memoranda, transcriptions, permits or other documents mcmorializing any 
conversations by and between you and anyone acting on your behal f and any 
representati ves of the Corps or DEQ. 

8.	 At all timcs what were the intendcd uses of the Sitery Provide any applications, plans, and 
any other documcnts that relate to the intended uses of the Site, including but not limited 
to tax maps, zoning requests, appraisals, plats or plots, permits and engineering drawings. 
Provide the dates of any and all meetings with the City of Virginia Beach regarding any 

such uses or intended uses. Provide copies of any records or notcs of meetings with city 



andlor county officials as well as a description of what was discussed at each mceting. 

9.	 Provide copies of all documents, or parts thereof, that assess the extcnt of any wetlands at 
the Site, or that determine or investigate any parameter used by the U.S. Army Corps of 
Engincers to determine the existence of wetlands. 

10.	 What is the area of land disturbance for each instance of work perfomled at the Site? 
Dcscribe how you calculated the area of land disturbance and provide copics of all 
documents relating to your calculation. 

II.	 Have crosion and scdiment controls been implemented in connection with any work 
pcrformed at the Sitc? Identify all pcrsons responsible for construction and maintenance 
of erosion and sediment controls implemented at the Site. Describe the construction and 
maintenance (including sequencing) of all erosion, sediment and storm water controls 
implemented at the Site. Provide copies of all documents related to implementation of 
erosion and sediment controls at the Site, including but not limited to copies of all 
erosion, scdimcnt and stoml water control inspections and maintenance records and 
copies of all inspections. 

12.	 Providc any and all infomlation related to the work prcviously conducted on the Sitc by 
othcrs including Mr. Jack Taylor. Identify the exact location(s) and size of clcarcd 
area(s), road(s) andlor any other potentially non-jurisdictional area(s) or disturbed area(s) 
that may have been prcsent before the recent land disturbancc activities wcrc conducted. 

13.	 State your reason for perfomling work on the Site without authorization from the US 
AmW Corps 0 f Engineers. 

14.	 Identify any and all efforts by you or anyone acting on your behalf to comply with the 
Clean Water Act with respect to any work performed at the Site. 
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UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY
 
REGION III
 

1650 Arch Street
 
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19103·2029 

CERTIFIED MAIL 
RETURN RECEIPT REOUESTED 

Mr. Michael Costello 
Mr. Ronald Caner 
Caner & Costello Tree Professionals 
3724 West Neck Road 
Virginia Beach, VA 23456 

Re:	 Section 308 Demand for Information
 
Propeny located Mill Landing Road, Virginia Beach
 

Dear Messrs. Costello and Caner; 

On August 5, 2005, EPA forwarded to you a Section 308 Information Request which
 
required that you provide information regarding the above·named propeny. Your response to
 
this request was due within founeen (14) days of receipt the letter. To date, we have received
 
nothing from you. Bowcver, based on a conversation this morning between Carol Petrow and
 
Mr. Costello, EPA is granting you additional time to respond.
 

, 

This letter serves to advise you that a response to EPA's August 5, 2005 Section 308 
Information Request is due in our office within ten (10) days of the date of this leller. Please be 
sure to submit with your response all supponing documentation including, but not limited to, 
orders, bills of lading, and invoices. Your failure to respond may result in, among other things, 
initiation of an enforcement action. Should EPA prevail in such an action, you face penalties for 
failure to comply up to $32,500 a day. 

Your anticipated cooperation in this matter is greatly appreciated. Should you have any 
questions, please contact Carol Petrow at (215) 8 J4-2789. 

Sincerely, 

Jeffrey D. Lapp 
Wetlands and Oceans Program Manager 

cc:	 Mr. Randy Steffey - U,S. AmlY Corps of Engineers, Norfolk District
 
Mr. lohn Brandt - Virginia Depanment of Environmental Quality
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Mr. Bert Parolari - Virginia Department of Environmental Quality 
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UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY
 
REGION III
 

1650 Arch Street
 
Philadelphia. Pennsylvania 19103-2029
 

CERTIFIED MAIL 
RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED 

Mr. Michae] Costello 
Mr. Ronald Carter 
Carter & Costello Tree Professionals 
3724 West Neck Road 
Virginia Beach, VA 23456 

Re:	 Section 308 Demand for In fom1ation
 
Property located Mill Landing Road, Virginia Beach
 

Oe"r Messrs. Costello and Carter; 

On August 5, 2005. EPA forwarded 10 you a Seeti0n 308 Infonnat;0n Re'l"e,t which 
reql1ired that you provide information regarding the ahove named property. Your response to 
this reqlcst was due within fourteen (14) days ofreeeipt the letter. We did nol receive your 
rcsponsc by thc deadline. 

However, on Septembcr 12,2005, based on a conversation hetween Mr. Costello and 
Carol Petrow, EPA issued a letter via Certified Mail granting you an additional ten (10) days to 
respond to EPA's August 5, 2005 Section 308 Information Request. At that tillIe you wcre 
informed that your failure to respond may result in, among other things, initiation of an 
enforcement action. According to our records Mr. Costello signed for this letter acknowledging 
receipt on September 16, 2005. 

Again, we did not receive your response hy the deadline. Ms. Petrow attempted 
contacting you hy telephone, leaving messages on severa] occasions. On September 30, 2005 we 
sent another copy of our previous letters of August 5, 2005 and September 12, 2005 via Federal 
Express to your office. To date, we have not received a response EPA's August 5, 2005 Section 
308 Infonnation Request nor have we been contactcd by you. 

This lettcr scrvcs to advise you that a response to EPA's August 5, 2005 Section 308 
Information Rcquest is due in our office immediately lipan receipt of this letter. Please he SLlre to 
submit with your response all supporting documentation including, but not limited to, orders, 
hills of lading, and invoices. Your failure to respond may result in, among othcr things, initiation 



UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY
 
REGION III
 

1650 Arch Street
 
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19103·2029
 

David K. Paylor, Director 
Virginia Department of Environmental Quality 
P.O. Box 10009 
Richmond, VA 23240. 

Re:	 Notice of Proposed Assessment of a Civil Penalty 
EPA Docket No. CWA-03-2006-0104 

Dear Mr. Paylor: 

Enclosed is a copy of an Administrative Complaint which Region ill of the U.S. 
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) has issued to Michael Costello and Ronald Carter, d/b/a 
Carter and Costello Tree Professionals ("Respondents"), pursuant to Section 309(g) of the Clean 
Water Act, 33 U.S.C. § 1319(g), for failure to respond to a request for information authorized 
under Section 308 of the Clean Water Act. With this Complaint, EPA proposes assessing a civil 
penalty in the amount of ten thousand dollars ($10,000) against these Respondents. 

Since the violations occurred in Virginia, EPA is providing you with an opportunity to 
confer with EPA officials regarding the proposed assessment. You may request an in-person or 
telephone conference within thirty (30) days ofreceipt of this letter. To request a conference or to 
make any other inquiries, call or write to: 

Pamela Lazos (3RC20)	 Jeff Lapp (3ES30) 
Sr. Asst. Regional Counsel	 Wetlands and Oceans Program Manger 
U.S. Environmental Protection U.S. Environmental Protection 

Agency--Region ill Agency--Region ill 
1650 Arch Street 1650 Arch Street 
Philadelphia, PA 19103-2029 Philadelphia, PA 19103-2029 
215/814-2658 215/814-2717 

A copy of EPA procedures governing the assessment of administrative penalties is 
available upon request. 

~ ~Ohn R. pompo~irectorUEnvironmental Assessment and 

Enclosure 


